
Standards Committee

Date Monday 4 March 2019
Time 10.00 am
Venue Committee Room 1A - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement.

1. Apologies for Absence  
2. Declarations of Interest, if any  
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 December 2018  (Pages 3 - 6)
4. Code of Conduct Update  (Pages 7 - 26)
5. Standards Update  (Pages 27 - 32)
6. Standards in Public Life Consultation on Local Government Ethical 

Standards  (Pages 33 - 158)
7. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the Meeting 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
22 February 2019

To: The Members of the Standards Committee

Councillors J Atkinson, A Bainbridge, E Bell, J Bell, J Clark, M Clarke, 
E Huntington, B Kellett, J Nicholson, A Savory and D Stoker

          Town Councillor T Batson and Parish Councillor R Harrison

Contact: Jill Errington Tel: 03000 269 703





DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

At a Meeting of Standards Committee held in Committee Room 1A - County Hall, 
Durham on Monday 10 December 2018 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor B Kellett (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors J Atkinson, A Bainbridge, J Clark and M Clarke

1 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors E Bell, J Bell, E Huntington 
and A Savory, and Parish Councillor R Harrison.

2 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

3 Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record and were signed by the Chairman.

4 Committee Work Programme 

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
which informed the Committee of progress against the Work Programme agreed in 
December 2017 and proposed a new Work Programme for 2019 (for copy see file 
of Minutes).

Members noted that the majority of the Work Programme had been completed. The 
Code of Practice for Members and Officers dealing with planning matters had not 
been reviewed in accordance with the expected timescale in 2018, and was 
included in the new Work Programme for completion in the Spring of 2019. 
However, in view of the extensive work involved in reviewing the Code, the 
Committee was asked to agree to the extension of this deadline to Autumn 2019.  

Councillor Clark made a general point that some applications submitted to Planning 
Committees were submitted in the name of the Agent rather than the Applicant and 
Members may therefore be unaware of a disclosable interest in a particular 
application under consideration. Councillor Clark asked that an applicant’s identity 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



be also included in reports so that Members were clear about whether a declaration 
of interest was required. 

Resolved:

That

a) the progress against the Work Programme approved in 2017 be noted;

b) the proposed Work Programme for 2019 be approved.

5 Code of Conduct Update 

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
which provided the Committee with an update on activity since the last meeting in 
respect of complaints received by Durham County Council against Councillors (for 
copy see file of Minutes).

The Governance Solicitor advised that as requested at the last meeting of the 
Committee further detail regarding the outcome of complaints had been included in 
Appendix 2 of the report. Going forward it was proposed that Decision Notices, 
which were available for public inspection, would be published on the Council’s 
website.

Members were informed of training provided in the period in response to specific 
complaints. The Monitoring Officer had also offered training to Parish and Town 
Councils where queries/issues had been raised but no formal complaints had been 
received.  Two such sessions were being arranged for early 2019.

Resolved:

That the contents of the report be noted.

6 Standards Committee Hearing Panel - Alleged Breaches of Durham County 
Council's Code of Conduct - COM 134 

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
which informed Members of the outcome of a Standards Committee Hearing Panel 
(for copy see file of Minutes).

The Governance Solicitor informed Members that the sanctions determined by the 
Standards Committee Hearing Panel, as detailed in Appendix 2 of the report, had 
been completed, with the exception of training in the Council’s Code of Conduct for 
Members, including the Protocol on Member/Officer Relations. The Monitoring 
Officer had agreed to postpone the training due to unforeseen circumstances of the 
Councillor, but it was expected that this would be completed by March 2019. The 
Committee would be informed when the training had taken place.

The Committee was asked to consider whether procedural training on Standards 
Committee Hearing Panels would be useful, following a request by some Members. 

Page 4



Members discussed the value of training and noted that Panels were infrequent, 
however did feel it was important to be familiar with the process. Councillor Clark 
made the point that Members asked to sit on a Hearing Panel were briefed about 
the procedure in advance of the hearing by the Governance Solicitor, but 
acknowledged that a training session in addition to this may also be useful.

Resolved:

That 

a) the outcome of the Standards Committee Hearing Panel attached at 
Appendix 2 of the report, be noted;

b) a training session on Standards Committee Hearing Panels be arranged. 

7 Standards Update 

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
which informed Members of the ‘national picture’ on standards issues affecting 
Local Government (for copy see file of Minutes). 

Resolved:

That the contents of the report be noted and Officers monitor the progress of the 
matters referred to and keep the Committee updated.

8 DCLG Consultation - Disqualification Criteria for Councillors 

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
which informed Members of the outcome on the consultation by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government on updating disqualification criteria for local 
authority members (for copy see file of Minutes).  

Resolved:

That the Government’s response to the consultation be noted.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

             

       

 Standards Committee 

4 March 2019 

Code of Conduct Update 

 Ordinary Decision  

 

Report of Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services and 
Monitoring Officer 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

None. 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To provide the Committee with an update on activity since the last 
meeting in respect of complaints received by Durham County Council 
against councillors. 

Executive summary 

2. The report provides at Appendix 2 a list of complaints of alleged breaches 
of the Code of Conduct currently being assessed and those which have 
been completed. Complaints are considered in accordance with the 
council’s Local Assessment Procedure dated October 2018. 

3 The report also informs the Committee of training provided by the 
Monitoring Officer.    

Recommendation 

4 Members are asked to: note the contents of the report. 

 

  

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Complaints 

5 There continues to be a high volume of complaints against Councillors, 
although there has been a reduction since the last meeting of the 
Committee, with a total of 16 new complaints logged in the quarter. In 
respect of those received, 2 separate complaints were made against 2 
Parish Councillors (COM 216-217 and COM 219-220) and 6 complaints 
were received in respect of 1 Parish Councillor (COM 222, COM 225, 
COM 226, COM 227, COM 232 and COM 235). Two further complaints 
were received about a Town Councillor who is the subject of local 
investigation (COM 223 and COM 233). 

6 Decision notices have been issued in the period in respect of complaints 
ref: COM 201-202, COM 204, 208 and 210, COM 211-213, COM 214, 
COM 215, COM 218, COM 223 and COM 224.   The outcome of each 
complaint is included in Appendix 2 and Members will note that 
complaints in respect of 2 Parish Councillors and 1 Town Councillor have 
been referred for local investigation (COM 201-202, COM 204, COM 208 
and 210, COM 211-213, COM 223). 

7 It would not be appropriate to comment on those complaints that are 
currently being assessed/investigated but Decision Notices will be 
available for inspection once the decision has been communicated to the 
Member subject to the Complaint.  

Training 

8 At the request of Waldridge Parish Council, the Monitoring Officer 
provided a training session on the Code of Conduct for Members on 8 
January 2019. 

Main implications 

Legal Implications 

9 The council has a duty under s. 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct by its members and to adopt a 
Code of Conduct that is consistent with the Nolan Principles. It must also 
have in place arrangements to consider allegations about breaches of the 
Codes of Conduct for Members, by the council’s own members and of 
members of parish/town councils for which the council is the principal 
authority. 

Conclusion 

10 The report is intended to provide an overview of complaints handling to 
assist the Standards Committee to fulfil their role in promoting and 
maintaining high standards of conduct. 

Page 8



Background papers 

 Local Assessment Procedure dated October 2018. 

 Decision Notices. 

Contact: Kamila Coulson-Patel  Tel:  03000 269674 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



Appendix 1  

Legal Implications 

As outlined in the report. 

Finance 

None. 

Consultation 

None. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

None. 

Human Rights 

None. 

Crime and Disorder 

None. 

Staffing 

None. 

Accommodation 

None. 

Risk 

None. 

Procurement 

None. 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

Appendix 2:  Code of Conduct Complaints – Update 4 March 2019 

                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

COM 196, 
198, 205-206 

Parish COM 196  
26 September 2018, 

COM 198  
2 October 2018,  

COM 205 
30 October 2018  

COM 206 
5 November 2018 

Members of the public 
 

The Complainants complain about the 
disrespectful and aggressive behaviour of the 
Councillor towards them when questioning 
issues around the maintenance of the old 
recreation ground and the emptying of the bins 
on the field. Complainant COM 198 alleges 
that the Councillor blamed him for the state of 
the field, potentially damaging the reputation of 
his business.  
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that 
the Councillor has failed to behave in a 
manner that a reasonable person would regard 
as respectful, contrary to paragraph 1 of the 
Code of Conduct, and that their behaviour was 
bullying and intimidatory, contrary to paragraph 
2 . In respect of COM 198 it is alleged that the 
Councillor has sought to convey a 
disadvantage on a person, contrary to 
paragraph 3. 
 
 
 
 

1, 2, 3  Currently being 
considered by the 
Governance 
Solicitor. 

COM 199 County 9 October 2018 
Member of the public 

The Complainant says that on Tuesday 2 
October 2018, she was a passenger in a car 
trying to find a parking space. She says she 
witnessed the Councillor in a state of agitation, 
walking out into the road and sometimes 
gesticulating. The driver of the car she was in 
then parked near the junction, at which point 
the Councillor approached the vehicle and 

4.3(b), 4.3(j)  Currently being 
considered by 
Solicitor. 

P
age 11



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

indicated to the driver to wind down the 
window. The Councillor then said that 
residents had been complaining about 
inconsiderate parking, and proceeded to 
berate the driver, asking that the car be 
moved, and threatening to take photographs 
and to report the driver to the police.  
 
The Complainant considers that the Councillor 
attempted to give the appearance of having 
power over parking enforcement matters by 
reason of being a Councillor, and considers 
that this is disrespectful and disreputable. The 
complainant considers that it is inappropriate 
for a Councillor to be standing on street 
corners, berating members of the public, acting 
strangely and making threats.  
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that 
the Councillor has not dealt with the 
complaints from residents fairly, appropriately 
or impartially, contrary to paragraph 4.3(b) of 
the DCC Members’ Code of Conduct, and has 
failed to treat people with respect, contrary to 
paragraph 4.3(j). 
 
 

COM 200 Parish 15 October 2018 
Parish Councillor 

The Complainant states that the Councillor 
instructed an Officer of Durham County 
Council to remove rocks from three areas of 
the village. The Complainant says that this 
work has not been tabled or minuted at any 
recent Parish Council meeting, and that the 
Councillor has recently asked the Clerk to 
place it on the Agenda for the meeting of the 
Council, after the work was authorised, and 
started and completed in two locations. 
 

3  Currently being 
considered by 
Governance 
Solicitor. 

P
age 12



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

It is alleged that this is the second time that the 
Councillor has made a decision when the 
placement of a rubbish bin was done without a 
Council decision. 
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that 
the Councillor has behaved in such a manner 
that could be regarded as likely to bring the 
Council into disrepute, contrary to paragraph 3 
of the Code of Conduct. 
 

COM 201-202  2 Parish 15 October 2018 
Parish Councillor 

The Complainant alleges that at a meeting of 
the Parish Council the Councillors’ behaviour 
towards the Complainant was threatening at a 
meeting of the Council on 10 September 2018, 
contrary to paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
It is also alleged that in respect of complaint 
COM 202 the Councillor failed to declare an 
interest at a meeting in a matter which related 
to a Partnership of which he was a Director.  
 

1, 2, 11-15  12 December 
2018 

Allegation regarding 
a failure to declare 
an interest referred 
for investigation 
(COM 202). 
Allegations 
regarding lack of 
respect and 
bullying/intimidation 
by both Councillors 
– No Further Action 
(COM 201-202).  
 

COM 203 Town 15 October 2018 
Town Councillor 

The Complainant says that at a Committee of 
the Town Council on 21 May 2018 the 
Councillor made defamatory statements 
against her and was upset by the bullying and 
intimidating manner the Councillor used in 
front of other Councillors and members of the 
public, without apology. 
 
The Councillor had also authorised the felling 
of a tree without Council approval. 
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that 
the Councillor has breached paragraphs 4.1.1 
and 4.1.2 of the Code of Conduct, which are 

4.11, 4.12, 4.13  Currently being 
considered by 
Governance 
Solicitor. 

P
age 13



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

respectively the respect and 
bullying/intimidation provisions, and has 
behaved in such a manner that could be 
regarded as likely to bring the Council into 
disrepute, contrary to paragraph 4.1.3. 

  
COM 204, 208 

and 210 
Parish COM 204 

15 October 2018 
COM 208 

8 November 2018 
COM 210 

13 November 2018 
Members of the public 

The Complainants allege that the Councillor: 
 

1)  tries to influence decisions of the 
Allotment Association by using their 
position as a Parish Councillor;  

2) persuaded the local PCSO to issue 
Harassment Orders to the members of 
the Allotment Association which were 
then revoked.  

3) tried to have the complainants evicted 
from the Allotment Association; 

4) circulated details of a spent criminal 
conviction of one of the complainants 
around the village.   

 
The allegations amount to a breach of 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Code of Conduct 
which are the respect and  bullying/intimidation 
provisions, and also 4 and 6, that the 
Councillor has disclosed information prohibited 
by law and has sought to improperly confer a 
disadvantage on the complainants. 
 

1, 2, 4, 6 10 December 
2018 

Referred for 
Investigation – 
interviews have 
taken place as part 
of the investigation. 

COM 211-213 Town 13 November 2018 
Members of the public 

The Complainants complain about the conduct 
of the Councillor at ‘The Lighting of the Beacon 
of Hope Service’ as part of Remembrance Day 
activities on 11 November 2018. The 
Complainants allege that the Councillor was 
under the influence of alcohol, showed no 
respect throughout the service and could not 
fulfil his duties as part of the Order of Service. 
 

1, 6 3 January 
2019 

Referred for 
Investigation – 
COM 223 to be 
considered as part 
of this. Interviews 
have taken place as 
part of the 
investigation. 

P
age 14



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

The complaints amount to an allegation that 
the Councillor has failed to behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful, contrary to paragraph 1 of the Code 
of Conduct, and has behaved in a manner 
which could be regarded as bringing the 
Council, or office as a member of the Council 
into disrepute, contrary to paragraph 6. 
 
 

COM 214 Town 13 November 2018 
Member of the public 

 

It is alleged that the Councillor commented on a 
post on social media which was designed to 
damage the charity’s reputation of which the 
complainant is a Director, and which discredited 
their work. The Councillor is orchestrating a 
campaign against the Charity through another 
person. 
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that the 
Councillor has breached paragraph 4 of the 
Code of Conduct, that the Councillor has sought 
to confer a disadvantage on a person.    
 

1 and 4 12 December 
2018 

No Further Action. 
The Councillor was 
not commenting in 
her capacity as a 
Councillor but in a 
professional 
capacity and that it 
was not 
unreasonable to 
express concerns 
regarding services 
provided to 
vulnerable 
individuals for the 
protection of the 
facilitator and 
individuals. There is 
no evidence that 
the Councillor is 
orchestrating a 
campaign and the 
Councillor cannot 
be held responsible 
for the comments or 
actions of another 
individual. 
 

P
age 15



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

COM 215 Parish 19 November 2018 
Member of the public 

The Complainant alleges that the Councillor: 
 

1) behaved in a disrespectful manner 
towards the complainant and others at 
a meeting of the Allotment Association 
on 3 September 2018; 

2) behaved in a bullying manner at an 
allotment inspection in August 2018 
towards the Chair of the Association; 

3) used his position as Parish Councillor 
to inappropriately influence the 
management of the Association by 
requesting the complainant to call an 
extraordinary meeting to consider a 
‘vote of no confidence’ against the 
Association’s Committee members; 

4) is a friend of one member of the 
Association who has tried to disrupt a 
meeting, produced a petition with 
forged signatures and flouted rules; 

5) has sided with members of the 
Association who are the subject of 
disciplinary action by the Committee, 
failing to inspect allotments impartially, 
thereby improperly conferring an 
advantage on those persons. 

 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 
Paragraph 1 – He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 2 – He/she shall not behave in a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
bullying or intimidatory 
Paragraph 3 – He/she shall not behave in a 
manner that could be regarded as likely to 
bring the Council or office as a member of the 
Council into disrepute. 

1, 2, 3, 4 31 January 
2019 

No Further Action. It 
is clear from the 
evidence that there 
has been a 
relationship 
breakdown between 
the Allotment 
Association, the 
Allotment Holders 
and possibly 
members of the 
Parish Council who 
are seeking to 
resolve issues. A 
mediation process 
is already 
underway.  

P
age 16



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

Paragraph 4 – He/she shall not seek to 
improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person. 
 

COM 216 - 
217 

2 Town 22 November 2018  
Town Councillor 

The Complainant advises that on 22 October 
2018 a post was made on a public Facebook 
page by one of the subject Councillors.  This post 
was a screen shot of a private and confidential 
e-mail that he had previously sent to one of the 
Councillors as a member of the same group where 
he had mentioned in full confidence that he 
was considering resigning from the group.  It is 
alleged that the post was edited in such a way 
that the context of the original e-mail was also 
misrepresented. 
 
The Complainant states that this post was 
made without his knowledge or permission, 
and as such has caused undue stress to the 
complainant and his family which ultimately 
resulted in his resignation from the group, as 
he had felt that he was left with no option.  
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that 
the Councillors have breached paragraphs 1 of 
the Code of Conduct (respect provision), 
paragraph 5 as they have shared confidential 
information about the complainant, and 
paragraph 6 as they have not complied with 
the Council’s policies and procedures (ie the 
social media policy). 
 

1, 5, 6  Currently being 
considered by 
Solicitor – to be 
considered with 
COM 219-220. 

COM 218 Town 6 December 2018 
Member of the public 

The Complainant alleges that the subject 
Councillor administers a Facebook page and 
refused to remove defamatory posts about the 
complainant’s business, despite several 
complaints to the Councillor about the 
slanderous posts. The Complainant says that 

1 and 4 5 February 
2019 

No Further Action. 
The Councillor was 
not the author 
of the posts and 
cannot be held 
responsible for the 

P
age 17



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

each time the Councillor has been 
discourteous, ignorant and rude. 
 
 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 
Paragraph 1 – He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 4 – He/she shall not seek to 
improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person. 
 

Facebook posts of 
others. 
The Councillor was 
not acting in his 
capacity as a 
Councillor. 

COM 219-220 2 Town 12 December 2018 
Member of the public 

The Complainant alleges that on 20 October 
2018 one of the subject Councillors posted a 
private conversation between the other subject 
Councillor and a fellow Councillor, which 
humiliated and showed disregard for that 
Councillor and was a breach of confidence.  
 
The complaint amounts to an allegation that 
the Councillors have breached paragraphs 1 of 
the Code of Conduct (respect provision), 
paragraph 5 as they have shared confidential 
information about the complainant, and 
paragraph 6 as they have not complied with 
the Council’s policies and procedures (ie the 
social media policy).  
 

1 and 5  Currently being 
considered by 
Solicitor – to be 
considered with 
COM 216-217. 

COM 222 Parish 2 January 2019 
County/Parish Councillor 

It is alleged that at the Parish Council meeting 
on 20 December 2018, there was a 
disagreement between the Complainant and 
the subject Councillor about the provision of a 
defibrillator. It is alleged that the Chairperson 
had been subject to “quite a tirade of abuse 
from the Councillor”. The Complainant 
returned to his car and the Councillor opened 
the door of his own car and shouted at him that 
the Complainant had tried to humiliate him in 

1 and 2  Currently being 
considered by the 
Governance 
Solicitor – with 
COM 225 

P
age 18



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

the Council, and he had better watch himself 
because he would be watching every move he 
made. The Complainant asked "is that a 
threat" to which the Councillor replied "no it 
isn’t but I will be watching you”.  
 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 
Paragraph 1 – He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 2 – He/she shall not behave in a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
bullying or intimidatory 
 

COM 223 Town 9 January 2019 
Town Councillor 

It is alleged that on 4 January 2019 the 
Complainant received a call from the 
Councillor demanding that she inform him of 
the outcome of a Sub-Committee meeting she 
had attended on 19 December 2018 which the 
Complainant says she could not do  because it 
related to the personal information of an 
individual. The Councillor was verbally 
aggressive implying that she was stupid and 
the Complainant considers the Councillor’s 
behaviour was a clear example of male to 
female bullying.  
 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 
Paragraph 1 – He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 2 – He/she shall not behave in a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
bullying or intimidatory 
 
 
 

1 and 2 6 February 
2019 

Referred for  
Investigation – to be 
considered with 
COM 211-213  

P
age 19



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

COM 224 County 11 January 2019 
Member of the public 

The Complainant states that she had 
requested a meeting with the subject 
Councillor by e-mail but there had been no 
acknowledgement. The Complainant stated 
that she was sad and disappointed that no 
acknowledgement had been provided. The 
Complainant found this to be discourteous and 
asked why her email had not been worth an 
acknowledgment. 
 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 
Paragraph 4.3(b) which expects Councillors to 
deal with representations or enquiries from 
residents, members of their communities and 
visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially. 

4.3(b) 22 January 
2019 

No Further Action. 
The Councillor was 
sorry for not 
responding to the 
e-mail, she now 
appreciates that to 
the public the email 
contact details 
would imply that 
this is a way to 
correspond with 
her.  
On 21st January 
2018 the Councillor 
presented a written 
apology letter to the 
Governance 
Solicitor to forward 
to the Complainant. 
 

COM 225 Parish 16 January 2019 
Parish Councillor 

1. At the Parish Council meeting on 20 
December 2018, the Police provided an 
update on anti-social behaviour issues in 
the area. It is alleged that the Councillor 
stated in an aggressive and negative 
manner that he had no faith in the Police.  

 
2. The vacancy of a Parish Councillor was 

discussed at the meeting on 20 December 
2018 and the Complainant states that the 
appointment did not appear welcomed by 
the Councillor which was observed when 
the purchase of a defibrillator was 
discussed. The subject Councillor posted a 
comment on his Facebook page relating to 
the defibrillator which the Complainant 
found to be untrue and misleading.  

 

1 and 3  Currently being 
considered by 
Governance 
Solicitor – with 
COM 222 

P
age 20



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

3. At the meeting on 20 December 2018 a 
funding request was considered from a 
local organisation. It is alleged that the 
Councillor aggressively questioned a 
representative from that organisation.  

 
4. During a confidential item, it is alleged that 

the Councillor angrily expressed his 
annoyance with the decision to seek 
advice in preference of his proposed 
course of action. It is alleged that the 
Councillor made personal accusations 
against the Complainant, and referred to 
an apparent conflict of interest on this 
subject. 

 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 
Paragraph 1 – He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 3 – He/she shall not behave in a 
manner that could be regarded as likely to 
bring the Council or office as a member of the 
Council into disrepute. 
 

COM 226, 
227,232 and 

235 

Parish COM 226 
22 January 2019 

Member of the public 
COM 227 

23 January 2019 
Parish Councillor 

COM 232 
5 February 2019 

Member of the public 
COM 235 

14 February 2019 
Member of the public 

The complaints are considered collectively 
which relate to alleged incidents at the Market 
Place in Durham on 19 January 2019 during 
peaceful protest. 
 
COM 226  
The Complainant states the Councillor was 
aggressive inferring that she was stupid, he 
was a Parish Councillor and that she had 
incorrect information. The Complainant states 
that she moved away but he continued to stay 

1, 2 and 3  Currently being 
considered by the 
Governance 
Solicitor  

P
age 21



in front of the stand which the she felt was in 
an intimidating manner.  

The Complainant alleges that during a 
conversation with a couple, the Councillor 
pushed himself into a conversation. It is alleged 
that the Councillor’s behaviour was rude and 
aggressive, It is alleged that the Councillor 
cupped his hands around his face and started 
chanting loudly saying "these people are lying 
to you, these are all lies they are telling you" 
over and over again.  

 
COM 227 
The Complainant alleges the Councillor  
became verbally aggressive and tried to 
remove a banner. It is alleged the Councillor 
lunged at him and another protestor who were 
using their phones to record the incident. The 
police were called, the Councillor was 
handcuffed and removed from the Market 
Place.  
 
COM232 
It is alleged that the Councillor was shouting 
and swearing at the top of his voice, that he 
lost his temper and pushed elderly people in 
an aggressive manner who were getting 
information about the demonstration.   
 
The Complainant states that the Councillor 
pushed his family member and swore at her 
before approaching the stand of a group of ex-
servicemen who were also in the area 
supporting the demonstration. It is alleged that 
the Councillor attempted to take down the 
banner stating that the men were not 
servicemen, that they were a disgrace, that he 
was an ex-serviceman and they were not.  The 
Complainant reports that the police were 
called, the Councillor was removed and told 

P
age 22



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

not to return to the area. An hour later he 
returned to the area shouting, “the Parish 
Council say you are all telling lies”. The police 
were called again and he was removed.  
 
COM 235 
It is alleged that the subject Councillor was 
shouting, swearing and accosting shoppers. 
The Councillor swore in the complainant’s face 
and pushed her out of the way. It is also 
alleged that the Councillor started ‘kicking off’ 
with ex-servicemen who were also on the 
demonstration. 
 
All of the allegations relate to a potential 
breach of: 
Paragraph 1 - He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 2 – He/she shall not behave in a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
bullying or intimidatory 
Paragraph 3 – He/she shall not behave in a 
manner that could be regarded as likely to 
bring the Council or office as a member of the 
Council into disrepute. 
 

COM 228 Parish 23 January 2019 
Parish Councillor 

It is alleged that at a demonstration in Durham 
Market Place on 19 January 2019 when the 
Complainant asked that banners be removed 
from the DLI memorial, one of the 
demonstrators swore at the Complainant and 
with other demonstrators pushed and abused 
him, putting their phones in his face.    
 
The allegations relate to a potential breach of: 

1 and 3  Response awaited 
from Councillor 

P
age 23



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

Paragraph 1 – He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful. 
Paragraph 3 – He/she shall not behave in a 
manner that could be regarded as likely to 
bring the Council or office as a member of the 
Council into disrepute. 
 
 

COM 229 County 30 January 2019 
Member of the public 

It is alleged that the subject Councillor filed a 
rejection letter for a planning application with 
the sole intention of pushing the planning 
application to a committee meeting. In doing 
so the Councillor did not make clear whether 
she was acting as a Councillor or a member of 
the public, yet had sent the emails from her 
official Durham County Council e-mail address. 
After visiting the Complainant, the Councillor  
changed her stance from fully rejecting the 
Complainant’s planning application to neutral 
but the Complainant says this was too late and 
has affected the way her application is being 
considered. 
 
The allegations relate to a possible breach of: 
Paragraph 4.3(h) which is to ‘behave in 
accordance with all legal obligations, alongside 
any requirements contained within the 
Council’s policies, protocols and procedures, 
including on the use of the Council’s 
resources. The Council’s protocol which 
applies in this instance is the Code of Practice 
for Members and Officers dealing with 
planning matters. 
  
 
 

4.3(h)  Currently being 
considered by the 
Governance 
Solicitor 

P
age 24



Ref No: Subject 
Member  

Date 
received 

and complainant 

Allegations Paragraphs of 
Code 

Date of 
Decision 
Notice 

Outcome 

COM 233 Town 7 February 2019 
Town Councillor 

The allegations relate to social media posts 
made on a local community Facebook page 
regarding expenses claimed during the 
Complainant’s mayoral year. The Complainant 
states that even after being informed that any 
money used had come from his allowance the 
subject Councillor mentioned it a second time. 

 
The allegations relate to a possible breach of: 
Paragraph 1 - He/she shall behave in such a 
way that a reasonable person would regard as 
respectful.  
 

1  Currently being 
considered by the 
Governance 
Solicitor. 
 

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

             

       

 Standards Committee 

4 March 2019 

 Standards Update 

 

 

Report of Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1 To inform Members of the ‘national picture’ on standards issues 

affecting Local Government.  
 

Executive summary 
 
2 This report is for information to update the Committee on national 

developments, consultations and cases which relate to the work of the 
Committee since the last meeting. 

 

Recommendations 
 

3 Standards Committee are recommended to: 
 
(a) note the report and request that Officers monitor the progress of the 

matters referred to and keep the Committee updated; and 
 

(b) consider any recommendations it wishes to make arising out of the 
content of the report.  

 
  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Background 
 

4 As agreed by the Committee in December 2017, as part of the annual 
work programme, this will be a standing agenda item with a quarterly 
update to the Committee. 
  

Committee in Standards in Public Life: Consultation on Local 
Government Ethical Standards 

 
5 On 30 January 2019, CSPL published their findings from the 

consultation. The report made 26 recommendations intended to improve 
local government ethical standards and improve public confidence in the 
arrangements.  The findings and recommendations are detailed with a 
separate report presented for consideration by the Standards 
Committee.  

 

Code of Conduct Complaints 
 

6 Since the abolition of the Standards Board for England, national 
statistics and case reports are no longer collated. Therefore, any cases 
reported are taken from general research where councils publish details 

of their conduct hearings in public.  
 

York City Council – Councillor A. 
 

7 On 3 January 2019 the Joint Standards Committee Hearings Sub-
Committee considered a complaint against a Member of City of York 
Council. The complaint related to the actions of Cllr A. in relation to the 
recruitment of a council officer.  
 

8 The Panel considered the allegations which were as follows: 
(i) Cllr A used his position improperly to obtain an advantage for an 

administrative role by reason of his involvement in the recruitment 
process whilst having a personal interest.  
 

(ii) Cllr A disclosed confidential information, specifically the paper 
applications for the administrative role. 

 
(iii) Cllr A by failing to follow the Code in relation to the appointment of 

the administrative role, acted in a manner which could reasonably 
be regarded as bringing the Council or his position as a councillor 
into disrepute. 
 

9 The Panel made findings on the allegations and the reasons given are 
set out respectively below:  
 

Page 28



(i) Cllr A did not use his position as a Councillor improperly to obtain 
an advantage for an administrative role, by reason of his 
involvement in the process whilst having a personal interest. 
While the Panel were concerned about how Cllr A came to be 
involved in the appointment process, they were not satisfied that 
he had at that time a close association with the successful 
candidate. 
 

(ii) Cllr A did disclose confidential information, specifically about the 
applications for the administrative role. On the balance of 
probabilities the Panel, faced with two conflicting views, were not 
sufficiently satisfied that that application forms of candidates for 
the Executive Support Assistant post were physically taken to the 
pub on the evening of 26 June 2015. But all of those present at 
that meeting gave evidence that there was discussion about the 
qualities needed in the successful appointee. On the balance of 
probabilities, taking account of the evidence of all those who have 
indicated their presence at the meeting, the Panel were satisfied 
that information about candidates, at least about Persons B and 
H, were improperly shared at that meeting.  

 
(iii) Cllr A did not act in a manner which could reasonably be 

regarded as bringing the council, or his position as a councillor, 
into disrepute. The Panel do not consider that the breach in this 
case was such as could reasonably be regarded as bringing the 
council or Cllr A’s position as councillor into disrepute.  

 
10 The Panel after hearing representations regarding the sanctions, 

decided not to impose a sanction for the breach beyond publicising the 
decision.  

 
East Riding of Yorkshire Council as main urban authority of Thwing 
and Octon Parish Council – Councillor C  

 
11 It was alleged that Cllr C who was chairing a meeting of Thwing and 

Octon Parish Council on 12 February 2018, referred to the complainant 
as “a twittering old woman”. 
 

12 An investigation was carried out by the Monitoring Officer which found 
that although the exact words are not agreed, witness accounts verified 
that words to this effect were directed at the complainant. The 
Monitoring Officer concluded that the complainant was justified in taking 
offence, there was an imbalance of power between the Councillor and 
the complainant and the words were said at a public meeting. It was 
noted that it was not of importance whether or not members of the 
public were in attendance at the meeting.  

Page 29



13 Cllr C made little comment on the findings except to imply that the issue 
was blown out of proportion and that he had said “wittering like an old 
woman” which he felt for various reasons was much less offensive. The 
Monitoring Officer concluded that the effect of either phrase was the 
same and found that there was breach of East Riding’s Members’ Code 
of Conduct, as adopted by the Parish Council, namely treating others 
with respect and not conducting yourself in a manner that could 
reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or authority into 
disrepute. 
 

14 The Standards Committee Hearing found that Cllr C had breached the 
Code of Conduct and recommended that the Parish Council censure 
Cllr C as a result.  

 
Background papers 

 

 None 
 

Other useful documents 
 

 https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=11321&
Ver= 
 

 https://www.eastriding.gov.uk/council/committees/standards-
committee/standards-committee/ 

 

 

Contact: Kamila Coulson-Patel Tel:  03000 269674 

  

Page 30

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=11321&Ver
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=11321&Ver
https://www.eastriding.gov.uk/council/committees/standards-committee/standards-committee/
https://www.eastriding.gov.uk/council/committees/standards-committee/standards-committee/


Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

The Council has a duty under s. 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct by its members and to adopt a code of 

conduct that is consistent with the Nolan Principles. Ensuring that the 

Standards Committee is kept up to date with national Standards issues is 

expected to facilitate compliance with this duty. 

Finance 

None 

Consultation 

None.  

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

None.  

Human Rights 

None. 

Crime and Disorder 

None. 

Staffing 

None. 

Accommodation 

None. 

Risk 

None. 

Procurement 

None. 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



              

      

 Standards Committee 

4 March 2019 

 Standards in Public Life Consultation 

on Local Government Ethical Standards 

 

Report of Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To update Standards Committee on the outcome of Committee in 
Standards in Public Life Consultation on Local Government Ethical 
Standards. 

Executive summary 

2 The current Standards Regime was introduced under the Localism Act 
2011 and has been in operation since June 2012.  The arrangements 
were intended to be lighter touch than those under the former 
Standards Board for England with all emphasis on local councillors 
being held accountable by the electorate at the ballot box. 

3 In January 2018 the Committee for Standards in Public Life (CSPL) 
commenced a consultation on Local Government Ethical Standards 
regime, and in particular, the efficacy of sanctions available in relation to 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct. 

4 The Constitution Working Group and Standards Committee submitted a 
response to the consultation which closed on 18 May 2018.  CSPL 
published their report on 30 January 2019. 

Recommendation(s) 

5 Standards Committee are recommended to: 

(a) note the CSPL report on Local Government Ethical Standards; 
and 

(b) review at the Standards Committee on 7 June 2019 the Durham 
County Council Member Code of Conduct and consider revisions 
in light of the CSPL report. 

 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Background 

6 Following the introduction of the Localism Act 2011, the Standards 
Board for England and the associated standards regime were abolished 
and replaced with the current standards regime. Local authorities must 
have a Code of Conduct, which is based on the Nolan Principles but 
there is no longer a Model Code, which authorities must adopt.  Local 
Authorities must have arrangements for dealing with alleged breaches 
of the Code but are generally free to decide how these should operate.  

7 The intention was to streamline the complaints process and give 
Monitoring Officers greater flexibility in how they deal with complaints.  
The sanctions of suspension and disqualification were removed on the 
basis that local councillors would be held accountable at the ballot box. 

8 The current arrangements do provide a greater degree of flexibility 
which enables complaints to be considered and resolved more quickly 
than previously. However, there is a concern that the removal 
suspension and disqualification as possible sanctions means that it can 
be very difficult to effectively deal with serious breaches of the Member 
Code of Conduct such as bullying and harassment and/or persistent 
low-level bad behaviour.   

9 There are concerns that in a number of parish and town councils a large 
number of seats are uncontested. In such circumstances the public are 
not choosing to exercise their judgment and as a result there is no 
opportunity for electoral accountability to influence ethical standards.  

10 Consequently, CSPL conducted a consultation exercise on Local 
Government Ethical Standards between 29 January 2018 and 18 May 
2018.  Constitution Working Group and the Standards Committee 
submitted a response which is attached at Appendix 2 for information. 

CSPL Report on Local Government Ethical Standards 

11 On 30 January 2019, CSPL published their findings from the 
consultation.  A copy of the full report is attached at Appendix 3 for 
information.  CSPL make 26 recommendations intended to improve 
local government ethical standards and improve public confidence in 
the arrangements.  This report summarises 5 key recommendations 
which will impact on County, Town and Parish Councillors. 

(a) updating the model code and extending it to Parish Councils 

The report found that there is considerable variation in the length, 
quality and clarity of local authority codes of conduct.  It therefore 
recommends that the Local Government Association draft an 
updated model code.  It also recommends that Town and Parish 

Page 34



Councils adopt the Code of Conduct of their principal authorities 
or the new model code. 

(b) Presumption of Official Capacity 

The Code of Conduct only applies when a Councillor is acting in 
or gives the impression that they are acting in their official 
capacity.  The report found that the current understanding of 
public and private capacity is too narrow, undermining public 
confidence.  Therefore, it is proposed that there is a rebuttable 
presumption that a Councillor will be acting in their official 
capacity (i.e. the Councillor will be deemed to have been acting in 
their official capacity unless they can demonstrate otherwise).   

(c) Extending the list of Registerable Interests 

The report considers that the current arrangements for declaring 
interests are too narrow and do not meet public expectations.  
The report therefore recommends changes to the interests’ rules 
including extending the list of registerable interests to include two 
categories of non-pecuniary interest: 

(i) relevant unpaid commercial interests such as unpaid 
directorships; and 

(ii) trusteeship or membership of organisations that seek to 
influence opinion or public policy. 

(d) A new ‘objective’ test for when Councillors must withdraw or 
not vote 

The report recommends that the test for when Councillors are 
forbidden from voting/participating in discussion on matters in 
which they have an interest is amended.  It recommends that 
Councillors be required to refrain from voting or withdraw 
whenever they have any interest at all (whether registered or not) 
that a member of the public would reasonably regard as so 
significant as to likely prejudice the Councillors decision making. 

(e) Strengthening the sanctions system 

The report considers the current sanctions insufficient and so 
recommends allowing local authorities to suspend Councillors 
without allowances for up to six months, with suspended 
Councillors enjoying a right of appeal to the Local Government 
Ombudsman for investigation and a binding decision on the 
matter. 

Page 35



Other Conclusions and Recommendations 

12 Other recommendations in the report include: 

 Giving Local Authorities a discretionary power to establish a 
Standards Committee with voting independent members to 
advise on standards issues and decide on alleged breaches 
and/or sanctions for breaching the Code of Conduct. 

 Providing Independent Persons with legal indemnities if their 
views or advice are disclosed. 

 Abolish criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to 
disclosable pecuniary interests, which CSPL consider to be 
disproportionate in principle and ineffective in practice. 

 Requiring local authorities to take a range of steps to prevent and 
manage conflicts of interest that can arise when decisions are 
made in more complex and potentially less transparent contexts 
such as Local Enterprise Partnerships. 

 Fostering an ethical culture and practice by requiring Councillors 
to attend formal induction training by their political groups, with 
national parties adding the same requirements to their group 
rules. 

Implications for Durham County Council 

13 The report identified areas of best practice which are already in 
operation within County Durham.  For example, there are arrangements 
in place to appoint independent investigators to investigate allegations 
against Members, different Officers consider complaints under the 
assessment procedure and advise the Standards Committee on 
complaints.  The Monitoring Officer will consult the Independent 
Persons in relation to complaints which broadens their remit from the 
statutory requirement that they are consulted before a determination on 
breach or sanction. Decision Notices record the involvement and views 
the Independent Persons. 

14 Most of the recommendations will require primary legislation and 
therefore any changes will be subject to Parliamentary timetabling.  The 
changes relating to registrable interests will require secondary 
legislation and could be implemented more quickly.  CSPL intends to 
monitor the implementation of its recommendations in 2020. 

15 In the meantime, it is proposed that the Standards Committee review 
the Council’s Member Code of Conduct and consider amendments to 
reflect the outcomes of the report, in particular the recommendation that 

Page 36



Codes should include examples of what might constitute bullying and 
harassment.  

Background papers 

 None 

 

Other useful documents 

 Report to CWG dated 9 May 2018 

 Report to Standards Committee dated 22 March 2018 

 

Contact: Kamila Coulson-Patel Tel:  03000 269674 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

The Council has a duty under s. 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct by its members and to adopt a code of 

conduct that is consistent with the Nolan Principles. The majority of the 

recommendations made in the report will require legislative changes to take 

effect. However, the Council has the discretion to review and update its Code 

of Conduct to reflect some to the identified good practice prior to legislation 

being introduced.  

Finance 

There are no financial implications arising directly out of the report. However, 

if the recommendation to indemnify Independent Persons is implemented, this 

may have a financial implication for the Council.  

Consultation 

The CSPL consultation exercise took place between 29 January and 18 May 

2018. CWG and the Standards Committee submitted representations which 

are attached to this report. They will be consulted on any proposed changes to 

the Council’s Code of Conduct or arrangements for dealing with complaints 

arising out of the CSPL report.  

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

There are no equality and diversity implications arising out of the report.  

Human Rights 

None 

Crime and Disorder 

None 

Staffing 

None 

Accommodation 

None 

Risk 

None 

Page 38



Procurement 

None 

  

Page 39



Appendix 2:  Constitution Working Group and the Standards 
Committee - Response 

 

 

 

  

Page 40



Page 41

Jill.Errington
Typewritten text
APPENDIX 2



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



 

Appendix 3:  CSPL Report 

 

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 December 2018
	4 Code of Conduct Update
	Code of Conduct Update Appendix 2

	5 Standards Update
	6 Standards in Public Life Consultation on Local Government Ethical Standards
	App 3.pdf (p.1)
	CSPL Appendix 3.pdf (p.2-111)


